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Pastor Parochial Vicar

A MESSAGE FROM OUR PASTOR...

This Pictorial Directory is a contribution to the ongoing history of St. Paul
Parish. It has already served this valuable purpose. It will continue to serve
many purposes. The most important of these is the service of God. Jesus said:
“Love one another as I bave loved you” (Jobn. 15:12). This directory can
help us to know one another better — and thus learn to love one another better
because we are creatures of God, made in His image, and members of His
Church, the Body of Christ.

May this present work contribute in some small measure to ‘building up

the Body of Christ (Epbesians 4:12), and “filling up what is lacking in the
sufferings of Christ.” (Colossians 1:24).
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EXECUTIVE BOARD
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With the Lord a day
is like a thousand years,
and a thousand years

are like a day.
2 Peter 3:8

Mr. S.C. Kerchner
Executive Manager

Mr. Warren Walter

Mr. Edwin Frisse
Trustee

Trustee
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PARISH STAFF

Barb Kuhl Marguerite Wiegand
Parish Secretary Bookkeeper

Marci Donini
Bookkeeper

Shannon Stueber
Weekend Secretary

Stephanie Walter
Evening Secretary
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MINISTRIES

Mary Lou Meredith
Procurator/Advocate

Connie Knebel John (Jack) Cygan
Coordinator Of | Youth Minister
Religious Education .

God has not He has called
called me to me to be
be successful, faithful.

Mother Teresa

Sister Vera Marie Weber
Minister To The Elderly

R.J. Schwartztrauber, Jr.
Choir Director

Jean Korte
Coordinator of Liturgy

Luanne Murphy
Minister Of Music
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PARISH STAFF

cSAal‘l'l?g’ It is more
our CS/ ory.. blessed to
give than
to receive.
Acts 20:35

Peg Bodinet
Principal

Mary Thole
Administrative Assistant

Georgia Hogg, Dottie Jacober, Leona Marti,
Diane Boeser

Dave Knebel Leona Marti

Thomas Henrichs
Maintenance Superintendent Housekeeping Maintenance/Custodian
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Pastoral
Council

Always give yourselves fully to
the work of the Lord, because
you Rnow that your labor in
the Lord is not in vain.

1 Corinthians 15:58

Finance
Committee




Property
Committee
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School
Board

Cemetery
Board
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Adult Choir

Funeral Choir
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CHURCH OF ST. PAUL, HIGHLAND, MADISON COUNTY, ILLINOIS
Established in 1844

The Catholic Congregation of Highland is but a few years younger than
Highland itself.

In October, 1831, Dr. Casper Koepfli with his three sons and his
nephews arrived in New Switzerland, now Highland. They hailed from the
German speaking canton of Lucerne, Switzerland.

In the meantime (1840) the colony of Highland was augmented by eight
families from Baden, Germany. In 1841 seventy-two settlers were added, all
from Baden. The original Swiss Settlers were mainly Catholic, as well as
those arriving in the 1830’'s. With the arrival of the Baden, Germany groups

in 1840 and 1841, simultaneously a considerable number of Swiss Catholics
located in Highland.

The Archbishop of St. Louis would send out a priest to Highland from

time to time to say Mass in a private home and attend to their spiritual
needs.

In December 1843, the Catholics in and around Highland, (Highland was
then a village of sixty families) decided to build a frame church, 25’ x
40’. The cornerstone was laid with solemn ceremony on May 1, 1844, and was
ready for occupancy in 1846. The pastor of Teutopolis offered the first Mass
in the new church. Missionary priests came to Highland the next five years.
Among them was Rev. Marogna of Germantown, who was the first priest to keep
church records in Highland, starting in 1848. Also in 1848, Father Marogna
purchased a forty acre tract of land east of Highland, still known as St.
Joseph Cemetery, and a plot was enclosed for cemetery purposes. The
terrible ravages of Asiatic cholera visited this country in 1851, and
depleted many families, thus making a parish cemetery an imperative need.

Father Limacher, newly ordained, was appointed as first resident
pastor to Highland in 1851, and continued in charge until 1862. Father Paul
Limacher lived at the home of Jacob Rall, approximately three blocks from
Church. Later he moved to the home of Peter Voegele across from Church.
He outfitted a classroom in the Liebler home, (southwest corner of Ninth &

Cypress Strgets), where he taught not only children, but also held classes
for adults in both secular and religious subjects.

By this time the little frame church, 25 x 40, was too small and a new
and more commodious brick church was built in 1854 at a cost of $10,000.
Solomon Koepfli donated the lots and the stone for the foundation. On
Eqster Sunday, 1856, the first services were held and in May, 1861, the
Bishop visited Highland and dedicated the new church, confirming a class of

seventy—five: The little frame church was then transformed into a parochial
school and living quarters for the teachers.

The first Church was used as such until a new school was built in
1866. Our parochial grade school dates back to 1854. Lay teachers taught
for the first twelve years. The School Sisters of Notre Dame came in 1866.
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For a number of years they not only had the eight grades, but also an
academy for girls. The academy was later discontinued and a two-year high
school course was inaugurated. In 1927, under the inspiration of Father

August Hohl and his assistant, Father Bertman, a full four-year high school
course began.

In 1857, the Alton Diocese was established -- before this, Highland
was a part of the Diocese of Chicago. Father Limacher built the second
church in 1854, first parish house or rectory, (site of present rectory) in
1857 and started the first St. Paul School in 1854.

Father Bartels remained only a short time, from late 1861 to January
1863. No regular services were held until his successor, Reverend Peter
Peters, was appointed Pastor of the congregation from May, 1863 to 1874,
during which time he labored zealously in paying off an existing debt and
collecting a fund for a parish school building. The new school was finished
November 1, 1866 and in charge were Sister M. Jerome and Mother Mary
Caroline of the School Sisters of Notre Dame. (Brick for the school was
manufactured right on the property. The cost of the school was $10,000.)
The new school not only served as a parochial school but also as the School
Sisters’ Convent for a number of years. One building (the old schoolhouse
that stood on the northwest corner of Ninth and Olive) was a boarding school
for girls. The academy, called St. Scholastica, and the grade school had
a beginning enrollment of 80. Sister M. Pacifica was sent as the first
Superior in September, 1867. The enrollment was 90 boys and girls.

In 1874, Father Peters left Highland and was succeeded by Father L.M.
Oberprantacher who remained but a short time. Next came Rev. Joseph Meckel,
appointed pastor in 1875.

St. Joseph Hospital was established by Fr. Meckel in 1878. He brought
Hospital Sisters of St. Francis to staff the hospital.

In 1896, Father Joseph Meckel wrote and published a 50 year history
of the parish. After a successful pastorate at Highland, Father Meckel was

transferred to St. Mary’s Church at Alton, July 7, 1896. He died December
28, 1926.

Reverend August Schlegel, in 1896, followed Father Meckel as Pastor
of St. Paul, and continued in charge until 1903. At this time the hospital
was sold to the Franciscan Sisters. The money realized from the sale was

used in paying off the parish debt. He was the first pastor to be buried in
the parish cemetery.

Father Ferdinand Stick succeeded him on Thanksgiving Day in 1903.
During his charge the church was redecorated and many improvements were
made. He died August 20, 1914, and was buried beside Father Schegel.

Father John Gramke administered the parish from 1911 to 1919. Father
Gramke was transferred to Jerseyville in 1919.

Father Joseph DeChene who had been rector of Assumption for twenty-two

years, came as Pastor to St. Paul Church in 1919. During his office in 1923,
Father DeChene built the convent.

In 1924 the school was deteriorating and was remodeled at an expense
of $20,000. Father DeChene resigned his parish duties and took residence
at St. Joseph Hospital. He died April 17, 1928.
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Father August M. Hohl, pastor of Tuscola, Illinois, was appointed
pastor of St. Paul on September 11, 1927. Fr. Hohl was the first native-
born American to be appointed pastor of St. Paul Church. In 1927, he
inaugurated the first four-year high school course which was fully
accredited. On June 12, 1930, the first class graduated from St. Paul High
School. Father Alphonse Bertman was the first principal and in 1938, Sister
M. Paulissa became the first sister to serve as principal of the St. Paul
High School. The School Sisters of Notre Dame have taught in St. Paul
Schools from 1866 to present, except for the 1992-93 school year.

A new rectory was completed at a cost of $29,000 and Father Hohl and
his assistant, Father Bertman, moved in February 15, 1931. In 1932, Father
Hohl’s 25th Anniversary was attended by 66 Priests and Brothers, numerous
Sisters, Boy Scouts, students and parishioners. In 1939, Father Henry
Knoedler was appointed assistant pastor. He remained until 1949.

The cornerstone of a new high school and parish hall was laid in 1940.
The cost of this building was $114,000. Most Rev. James Griffin blessed the
rew school and hall in June, 1941. With the new hall and gym available, the
old parish hall (first church) was torn down in 1941 and is now the site of
the northwest parking lot.

Father Hohl, died December 20, 1942.

The Rev. William B. Whalen, pastor of St. Mary’s Church, Litchfield,

Illinois for three years, was appointed pastor of St. Paul’s on January 8,
1943.

The St. Vincent De Paul Society was founded by Father Whalen in the
early 1940's.

The Centennial Celebration of St. Paul Church was Sunday, October 8,
1944. A Pontifical High Mass was celebrated at 11 a.m. by Most Rev. James

A. Griffin, Bishop of Springfield; Rev. Gerald Wiegand, Deacon and Rev. John
Ratchford, Sub-Deacon.

In 1947, Father Whalen celebrated his 25th Jubilee as a priest.
In the Spring of 1949, an addition was made to the Sisters’ Convent.

In March of 1951, after permission had been obtained from His
Excellency Bishop William O’Connor, the second church was razed to make room
for a much needed larger church. The second church had stood for 97 years.
A parish house-to-house drive was conducted by the pastor which resulted in
a‘pledge and cash total of $§115,000. The erection of the church was
nineteen months in construction, and was built of brick and Indiana
limestone, seating capacity of 800. The original bells from the former
church are housed in the tower and are electrically operated. On October

izid}QSZ, the Solemn Dedication of the Third Church (the present church) was
eld.

In 1955, three lots were purchased directly south of the old school,

at a cost of $30,000, and one lot was donated by Mr. & Mrs. Carl Basler for
the new grade school site.

A financial drive was conducted personally by the Pastor, with pledge
of $200,000 over a five year period.
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In 1956, replacing the Annual Garden Party was a Garden Party
Collection which netted $8900. S.T. Pabst, Highland architect, was chosen
on February 25, 1956. The total cost of the building with furnishing and
lots was §$400,000. The Ground Breaking was Sunday, March 13, 1956. The
cornerstone was laid with its sealed contents on July 22, 1956.

On Easter Sunday, April 21, 1957, a Solemn Dedication of the new St.

Paul Grade School was held with a Mass celebrated by the Bishop followed
by Benediction.

On February 3, 1958, the Old Grade School (that was built in 1866) was
torn down. It had served as Sisters’ Convent, grade school and girls
academy, then a two-year high school and 4-year high school, then back to
Grade School, after the new High School and Hall was completed in 1941.

On March 15, 1959, Pastor William Whalen was made Right Reverend
Monsignor.

On November 20, 1963, two lots were bought from the Basler’s (west of
the new grade school) for construction of a new addition to the school, at
a cost of §40,000. In April 1964, a concrete block building was bought from
Basler Electronics at a cost of $40,000. Classrooms were made for a science
department in 1964. Spence and Haldi, Inc. Architects, with Charles Haldi
of Highland, designed the addition and construction of the six room single
story addition to the grade school was started in 1965 and was ready for
occupancy December 15, 1965, at a cost of $§124,000.

In May of 1965, the parish purchased three homes and Schott Property
(South side of Main St. between Cypress and Olive) for a total of $100,000
to be called the Community Center. The renovation of part of the Schott
building for classrooms was completed in April 1967.

During the 1965-66 school year, the St. Paul School Association was

started, with Roland Harris, the first president. (This is now called the
Parents and Friends Association.)

On August 20, 1967, a celebration of centennial of School Sisters of
Notre Dame was held in Highland. Five S.S.N.D were teaching in the Grade
School, and seven S.S.N.D. in the High School.

On January 28, 1968, Msgr. Whalen celebrated his 25 years of service

to St. Paul Parish; in May, 1968, St. Paul School Board was formed with Don
Tschannen as President.

The Tithing system was successful after its first year in 1968 through
1970.

A testimonial celebration honoring the retiring pastor, Rt. Rev. Msgr.

William B. Whalen, was held at St. Paul’s on Sunday, June 7, 1970. Msgr.
Whalen retired June 30th.

He was succeeded as pastor by Msgr. Lawrence Wiskirchen, Rector of the
Diocesan Seminary, Springfield. In 1971, the Parish Council felt need
for additional revenue and the need to bring the parish together, such as
the previous "Garden Parties". Ralph Korte was the first chairperson.
Msgr. Wiskirchen named the new festival "Kirchenfest" meaning "Church
Festival". The first Kirchenfest netted $25,593.00. John Wetzel was named
co-person, and the following year chairperson. The Kirchenfest offered a
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chicken dinner, refreshment tents, games and entertainment. Ralph Korte
took over again in the third year and Skip Butler was co-person and later
became the fourth chairman. In 1995, the 25th Anniversary of the
Kirchenfest netted $134,635.00. Howard Held was the Chairperson.

Msgr. Whalen observed his 50th Anniversary of the priesthood on June
8, 1972, at the Cathedral in Springfield, along with four other priests of
the Diocese, all ordained in 1922.

A letter was received from the Bishop authorizing improvement in St.
Paul Church including heating and air-conditioning for $51,550; new organ
for $42,000; renovated sanctuary for $40,700; new lighting and sound system
for $§16,000; painting of ceiling and walls, and stained glass for $23,210.

On January 26, 1975 Bishop O’Connor celebrated Mass in the newly
restored Church.

During the Spring of 1975 the interior of St. Paul Rectory was
refurbished to make more offices on the first floor; the kitchen, dining

room and meeting room were re-located on the lower level, at a cost of
$50,000.

November 27, 1977, Rt. Rev. Msqgr. William B. Whalen died at Carlyle
where he had resided. A Funeral Mass was officiated by Bishop Joseph A.

McNicholas on December 1, 1977 at St. Paul’s with burial in St. Joseph
Cemetery.

In 1979, Twigg’s "God’s Plan For Church Support" started at St.
Paul’s.

On May 6, 1979, there was installation of new Eucharistic Ministers.

On September 2, 1979 an open house was held to inaugurate Pre-School for
three and four year olds.

On June 1, 1980, at the graduation of St. Paul High School class of
1980, the Golden Jubilee Class of 1930 was in attendance.

~ On May 3, 1981, Msgr. Lawrence Wiskirchen died during Confirmation
Service, with Bishop McNicholas in attendance. In June 1981, Father Martin
Mangan was appointed pastor.

. In January of 1984, we began our support of an Adopted Parish in
Haiti. On August 21, 1985, a slide presentation was made to the Grade

School faculty on the history of the parish. The first pictorial, a Parish
Family Album was printed.

On May 30, 1986, the last class graduated from St. Paul High School.

On December 2, 1986, Father Martin Mangan, Pastor, was transferred to

Tuscola. On January 13, 1987, the installation of Father David Peters as
Pastor took place.

Father Peters was ordained on his 26th birthday -- May 24, 1958.
Prior to coming to St. Paul Parish, he served at Blessed Sacrament,
Springfield; St. Patrick, Alton; St. John’s Hospital, Springfield; St.
Anthony, Effingham; and served as Pastor of St. Michael, Staunton and St.
Bernard, Wood River. Father Peters is a native of Decatur, Illinois.
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On May 21, 1989, Msgr. Henry Knoedler, retired priest, celebrated his
50th Anniversary. He died on October 1, 1994. On December 3, 1989, Father
James Gutzler died and the funeral Mass was held at St. Paul Church on
December 9, 1989, with burial in St. Joseph Cemetery.

On September, 1990, the parish advertised the position of "Executive
Manager". In November, a transitional process began of changing from our

current Parish Council to a "Parish Finance Council" and a "Parish Pastoral
Council".

On February 18, 1991, Mr. Stephen C. Kerchner assumed the position as
the first Parish Executive Manager. On May 5, 1991, a second Parish Family
Album began and was to be completed in 1992. In September, 1991, a planning
and training session began for Neighborhood "HOST" Ministry Program to begin
in 1992. 1In August, Sister Marina, SSND, accepted a position at the Mother
House. St. Paul School has had at least one SSND teacher, except in the
1992-93 school year. Sister Maureen Buckley, eighth grade teacher, returned
the SSND’s to St. Paul in the 1993-94 school year. September 27, 1992 marked
the 125 Year Celebration for the School Sisters of Notre Dame.

On May 24, 1993, Father Peters celebrated his 35th Anniversary of
Ordination. On February 4, 1994, Father Peters received a letter from
Bishop Ryan re-appointing him for another six-year term.

In June 1993, the asbestos was removed from St. Paul Grade School and
this 93-94 school year began the first All Day Kindergarten Program at St.
Paul School. On July 1, 1993, Mrs. Marguerite Wiegand, Parish Bookkeeper
celebrated 50 years of service at St. Paul’s. In October, St. Paul’s

celebrated its Sesquicentennial which began May 1, 1994 and continued
through April 30, 1995.

The largest building project began with the renovation of St. Paul
Hall, now St. Paul Parish Center.

On March 29, 1993, Bishop Daniel L. Ryan granted permission to hire
an architect and conduct a feasibility study to remodel the hall. Mr.

Thomas J. Hyde of Graham, O’Shea & Hyde Architects, Inc., Springfield, IL
was hired.

A successful three-year Building Fund Drive was held. With the
generosity of St. Paul Parishioners and the Henry S. and Barbara C. Wagner
family, funds were raised and construction began March 20, 1995. On

December 3, 1995, Bishop Ryan dedicated the Parish Center. The cost was 2.2
million dollars.

On September 1, 1994, Father Robert Spriggs was assigned as Parochial
Vicar and on November 20, 1994, he began to broadcast the Saturday evening
Mass for radio on Sunday morning. Father Spriggs celebrated his 30th
Ordination Anniversary on May 22, 1995.

On July 1, 1996, Mrs. Margaret Bodinet became the new Principal of St.
Paul Elementary School.

May God continue to bless this Parish that began in 1844 by a few
families filled with Faith in Jesus Christ.
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MINISTERING TO THE ELDERLY

Heaven and earth

will pass away,

but my words
will never pass
away.

Matthew 24:35
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